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This building is significant as one of three remaining buildings of the
Washburn & Moen Manufacturing Company’s Quinsigamond Iron
& Wire Works, or South Works, complex. From about 1886 the
mid 1930s, the building housed an operation for galvanizing ferrous
metal wire. The building’s brick exterior construction with granite-
silled segmental arch windows, brick-arched loading bays, and
corbelled brick cornices is typical of late nineteenth century mill
buildings.
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Galvanizing House

The Galvanizing House, constructed between 1886 and 1892, is a one-story iron rod
reinforced brick building with a raised central monitor. Built to the limits of a site
constrained by the channel of the Blackstone River to the south, Millbury Street to the west,
and a railroad spur and siding to the east, the building has an irregular footprint, a nearly flat
roof and is surmounted by a rectilinear monitor with approximately seven foot (7°) high
windows capped by a low pitched roof. A railroad siding closest to the building connected
the Galvanizing House to an adjoining spur line that linked the main railroad line located just
northwest of the Wire Rope Building, to the main facilities of the Quinsigamond plant
immediately across the Blackstone River to the south.

The Galvanizing House retains its original footprint except for the removal of the
accumulator and a one hundred foot chimney stack which at the northwest corner of the
building’s north wall adjacent to Millbury Street as indicated on 19" Century plans. The
accumulator housed in a small structure attached to the north wall of the Galvanizing House,
served essentially as a very large storage battery to store the electric power used in the
galvanizing process. The building is in a deteriorated condition, with large areas of roofing
and flashing missing at the top of the exterior walls and significant loss of mortar visible in
the brickwork of the walls.

The Galvanizing House was built to supplement Washburn & Moen’s existing galvanizing
facilities to the south on the opposite bank of the Blackstone River. Galvanizing creates a
zinc metal coating on iron or steel products that inhibits the oxidation (rust) that causes the
deterioration of the material and also reduces its electrical conductivity. It was a multi-step
process that includes: 1) degreasing of the metal to remove any machine lubricants; 2)
‘pickling’ or immersion in hydrochloric or sulfuric acid to remove any surface oxidation, 1.c.
rust; 3) rinsing with water or a fluxing agent; 4) zinc immersion at 450°C in a ‘kettle’; and 5)
quenching in a water or chromate solution. Upon cooling, the galvanized wire was re-
wound onto drums for transport.

The Galvanizing House is constructed on a random ashlar foundation that is visible along the
south wall of the building where a portion of it also serves as the retaining wall for the
Blackstone River channel. The exterior walls of the Galvanizing House are red brick laid in
common bond with a header-stretcher-header bonding course every eighth course. Portions
of the building retain the original dentillated brick corbelled cornice. The building walls are
pierced at regular and frequent intervals by tall, narrow window openings with brick
segmental-arch heads and granite sills. Many of these window openings have been filled in
with brick or concrete block while some are boarded up and others are missing sash and
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leave the building open to the weather. On the building’s southwest elevation along Millbury
Street, some wood window sash remain that appear to be a triple hung window assembly.
These windows appear to be twelve-over-two-over-two configuration. Four window
openings (two each on the north and east elevations) have been lowered and made into
doorways. On the building’s east elevation next to the railroad spur line were the openings
for the two original brick-arched loading doors, the one to the north nearly twice the height
of the other. These openings have been filled in with concrete block, and two later openings
have been cut into the northwest facade and sectional overhead doors have been installed in
these openings. The remains of a painted American Steel Division sign are evident on the
north elevation.

Originally, the freight entrances on the east facade of the Galvanizing House permitted the
transfer of wire and other products in and out of the building from the adjacent spur line.

The Sanborn insurance map for 1892 shows a schematic layout for the galvanizing process
which included four rows of tanks (three rows of three tanks and one row of four) on an east-
west axis perpendicular to the rail spur. The Sanborn map indicates two treatments prior to
galvanizing (most likely degreasing and acid treatment) at three of the process locations. The
fourth row of tanks included an additional tank used for quenching. All equipment (tanks
etc.) has been removed, but their locations are evident in the layer of concrete poured around
the process tanks and over much of the Galvanizing House’s original brick floor at some
point after original construction. Evidence of the location of galvanizing kettles and other
tanks used in the galvanizing process survives in the form of brick footprints in the concrete
where the equipment has been removed.

At present, the interior on the north side of the Galvanizing House is divided by sheetrock-
on-stud partitions to form a large (15°x45’) entrance space flanked by offices. This entry
area leads to the main interior space where four-piece riveted (almost circular) steel columns
with wood braces support the perimeter framing for the large rectangular monitor, which has
a roof supported on wood trusses. The flat roof of the main building and the pitched roof of
the monitor are framed with 4 x 14” wood timbers. The monitor windows are eight-over-
eight, double-hung wood frame windows. The roof and monitor configuration allowed the
ventilation of heat and noxious fumes from the building while in providing natural light for
the workmen in the building. The steel columns and heavy timber construction surrounding
the rectangular monitor roof provided a degree of fire resistance and would have permitted
the installation of an internal crane system to suspend wire and other products as they moved
from tank to tank in the galvanizing process.
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This building was used for galvanizing from 1892 until 1976. Following the closure of the
Quinsigamond plant by the American Steel & Wire Company of United States Steel in 1977,
ownership of the Galvanizing House passed to Starr Scrap Metal. The building is now
vacant.
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